
The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to protect public health and the environment by providing effective wastewater 
collection, treatment, and recycling services. 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

   BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

June 15, 2023 

MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 

PUBLIC INSPECTION DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE DISTRICT 

OFFICE, 101 LUCAS VALLEY ROAD, SUITE 300, SAN RAFAEL, OR ON THE DISTRICT 

WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

      OPEN SESSION: 

     CLOSED SESSION: 

A.  CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR  – Agency designated representative : Gregory Ramirez, 
IEDA; Employee organization : IUOE Local 3:pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 

     OPEN SESSION: 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on matters not on the

agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally

limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or

placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR

These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion

unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board.

A. Approve the Board Minutes for May 25 and June 1, 2023

B. Approve the Warrant List for June 15, 2023

C. Approve Board Compensation for May 2023

D. Approve Request by Board member, Megan Clark, to remotely attend the Regular Meeting of the
Board scheduled for June 30, 2023, due to “emergency circumstances” pursuant to Gov. Code Sec 
54953 (f)(2)(A) (ii). 

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, items B and C. 

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through D. 

5:10 PM 

Estimated 
Time 

4:35 PM 

4:30 PM 

5:05 PM 

1

http://www.lgvsd.org/


June 15, 2023 Page 2 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS:

STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS:

1. General Manager’s Report – verbal

2. Engineering Department Report – written

3. Board Policy F-50 Reserves -  written

4. UNREPRESENTED EMPLOYEE CONTRACTS EXTENSON

Board to review and approve the Unrepresented Employee Contract extensions.

5. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS:

1. CLARK
a. NBWA Board Committee, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc Committee,

Other Reports

2. FORD
a. NBWRA, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc Committee,

2023 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 Fleet Management  Ad Hoc Committee,
2023 GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, SF Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

3. MURRAY
a. Marin LAFCO, 2023 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Energy Committee,

2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee, SF Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee,Other Reports

4. ROBARDS
a. Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, 2023 Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,

2023 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee,
2023 GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

5. YEZMAN
a. Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  2023 Ad Hoc Engineering Committee  re: STPURWE,

Marin Special Districts, 2023 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee,  Other Reports

6. BOARD REQUESTS:
A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal 

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal 

7. VARIOUS INDUSTRY RELATED ARTICLES

8. ADJOURNMENT

6:20  PM 

5:15 PM 

6:30  PM 

6:00  PM 

6:25  PM 

6:10  PM 

2



June 15, 2023 Page 3 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

 FUTURE BOARD MEETINGS JUNE 30 AND JULY 6, 2023 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before June 12, 2023 4:30 p.m., I posted the Agenda for the 
Board Meeting of said Board to be held  on June 15, 2023, at the District Office, located at 101 Lucas Valley 
Road, Suite 300, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: June 8, 2023 

_______________________ 
Teresa L. Lerch 
Board Secretary 

 _________________________________________________________________  

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the first and third Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 
business and/or study session. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San 
Rafael, CA.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
please contact the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Notification  
prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility  
to this meeting. 

AGENDA APPROVED: Megan Clark, President Patrick Richardson, Legal Counsel 

3



 

 
 

 

6/15/2023 
 

CLOSED SESSION 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

 Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

□ Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM A 

4



 

 
 

 

6/15/2023 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on 

matters not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District. Presentations are generally limited to three minutes. All matters 

requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or placed on a 

future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



 

 
 

 

6/15/2023 
 

 General Manager Report 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3.1 

25



26



27



28



29



30



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\06152023\ASR Financial Policies Review F50 Reserves.docx Page 1 of 1 

  Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Mtg. Date: June 15, 2023 
Re: Financial Policy Review of F-50 (Reserves) and Target Balances 

Item Type:   Consent    Action        Information X Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No     (See attached) Not Applicable     X        . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Review proposed changes to Financial Policy F-50 (Reserves) and provide direction to staff.  

BACKGROUND  
The District Reserve Policy guides the Board and staff on the establishment of reserves, explains 
the purpose and reasons for the size of each reserve, and provides for the oversight of reserves. 
 
As part of the budget process, the Reserve Policy was reviewed.  Target goals were discussed 
with the Board on June 1 and there was support for increasing the target goals for some of the 
reserves. 
 
The District also has restricted funds that are set aside for specific purposes. Restricted assets 
can be restricted by bond indentures, external constraints (such as agreements), or laws and 
regulations of other governments. There is no policy guidance on reserves other than 
administrative and budgetary procedures.  It is recommended that the restricted reserves held by 
the District be added to the reserves policy.  
 
Suggested changes and additions to Financial Policy F-50 (Reserves) are shown as red underline 
(red strikeout for changes) in the attached draft policy. 
 
Comments received will be incorporated and brought back to the Board for approval by formal 
resolution at a future meeting. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
Reserve Policy was last modified by Board Resolution No. 2022-2255 on May 19, 2022. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None.  The fiscal impact will occur when funds are allocated to reserves as part of the budget 
process and adoption scheduled for June 30, 2023. 

Item Number____3.3__________ 

GM Review   ____CP__________ 

 

31

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 

 
 
F-50 RESERVES 

Purpose 

This policy establishes reserves, explains the purpose and reasons for the size of each reserve, 

and provides for the oversight of reserves.  

 

The District requires reserves for operations and capital needs. Reserves provide financing 

safeguards for the District’s operations. Such funds are available for extraordinary expenses 

and to fund cash flow. In addition, reserve fund investments generate earnings to supplement 

other revenues. 

 

The District has two types of reserve funds: Designated Reserves and Restricted Reserves. 

Board Designated Reserves are comprised of funds set aside for specific purposes as 

determined by the District Board of Directors, which include, but are not limited to, funding for 

capital facility construction, replacement and refurbishment, and establishing operating and rate 

stabilization. The Board has the authority to redirect the use of the Designated Reserves as the 

needs of the District change. Restricted Reserves are funds held to satisfy limitations set by 

external requirements and restraints of agreements, creditors, grantors, or law. 

 
F-50-10  Designated Reserve Fund Policies 

PURPOSE 

OPERATING & RATE 
STABILIZATION 
RESERVE  
Fund unexpected 
expense increases or 
offset loss of Sewer 
Service Charge 
revenue. Replenish 
any reserves used over 
a 6-to-10-year period. 

VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT 
RESERVE (VERF) 
Fund capital vehicle 
replacement based on 
VERF program. Replenish 
any reserves used to 
adequately fund program 
for 3 to 4 years. 

EMERGENCY 
REPAIR RESERVE 
Fund emergency 
repairs. Replenish 
the reserve over a2 
to 3 year period. 

CAPITAL RESERVE 
Provide capital for 
major capital projects 
including upgrades 
and expansions. 

TOTAL 
COMBINED 
RESERVES 

CURRENT STATUS 

Target Goal     
(as of 6/30/23) 

$9,085,46610,000,000  $1,000,0000 $1,000500,000 $411,000,000. $1523,085,4
66500,000 

Balance 
(as of 06/30/21 
23) Balance 

$2,651,8984,248,594 $1,094,425499,376 $1,,000,000166,667 $3,425,6449,184,772 $8,171,9671
5,099,409 

Percent Reached 2942% 10150% 10078% 8683%  

Risks  The reserve is used to 
absorb unexpected 
cost increases and 
spread them over 
more than one year. 
Provide for this 
reserve by funding 
from property tax and 
ERAF funds. 

Aging vehicle fleet 
without proper 
replacement funding risks 
operational interruptions 
and sewer overflow 
response delays. 

Balance may be  
used to fund 
working capital 
needs. Fund would 
not be large 
enough to address 
a catastrophic 
event. 

Without a reserve, 
projects are funded 
with current year 
revenue in excess of 
O&M needs; or the 
District has to rely  
on bond financing.  
At the time the 
reserve balance was 
established the District 
had operating and 
capital reserves  
of $10M. 

 

32



Resolution No. 2022-22552023-xxxx Date Approved: May 19, 2022*** DRAFT **** 

President of the Board 
 

Last Revised: May 19, 2022May 19, 2022 

 

LONG-TERM GOALS 

Basis for Target 
Goal 

7 months of operating 
and debt service cash 
flow based on most 
current budget; 
amount  to be 
evaluated annually 
based on proposed 
budget.  Reserve can 
be used to stabilize 
and avoid dramatic 
rate increases. 

VERF program that 
determines useful vehicle 
life, varying from 5 to 10 
years.  Vehicle schedule 
used to develop target 
goal annually as part of 
budget process. 

The cost to repair a 
major pump station 
or other 
infrastructure. 

To provide capital for 
major capital projects 
that span two or more 
years. Accumulated 
depreciation to be 
reviewed and factored 
into setting target to 
have current ratepayer 
pay for the utilization 
of the District’s assets. 

 

The district will build up the reserves based on:  
(a) the annual Construction CPI and (b) annual allocations of property tax and ERAF funds, as available. 

 
Considerations 

Due to the timing of 
revenue receipts an 
increased margin 
would be more 
comfortable. A sudden 
increase in costs 
would have to be 
absorbed by operating 
reserves since the rate 
setting process occurs 
every 4 to 5 years. 

May not be sufficient to 
fund three or more 
unexpected large vehicle 
or equipment purchases. 

The reserve would 
be able to absorb 
one major repair or 
several smaller 
ones; a catastrophic 
event would 
require federal or 
state funding. 

Should be sufficient 
for cash funding or 
regular projects but 
may not be enough for 
larger infrastructure 
replacements where 
debt may be incurred. 

 

 

F-50-15  Target Goal and Balances. The target goal varies by reserve fund and is developed 

annually as part of the budget process.  Target goals may change as future budgets are 

adopted. For the latest balances refer to the most recently adopted budget. 

F-50-20  Use of Designated Reserves. Upon recommendation of the General Manager, the 

Board shall identify the reserve to be utilized and authorize the General Manger to transfer 

reserve funds to the respective operational or capital funds as part of the budget process. Any 

use outside of the budget process shall be reflected in any  revised budget or by resolution of 

the Board. 

 

F-50-30  Restricted Reserves 

Capacity Connection Fee Fund: Cash available from the collection of Capital Facilities Charge 

Connection Fees is kept in a separate fund. The fee is charged to developers based upon the 

estimated cost to construct additional capacity to serve the new development. These funds are 

restricted by law for expansion of sewer facilities that increase capacity within the District’s 

service area. Funds are disbursed from the reserve as expenditures are incurred to increase 

system capacity to serve the new connections that contributed to the fund through fees 

collected. The fund balance accrues interest monthly. (Government Code § 66013(c)). 

Captains Cove Fund: In 2003, the District entered into an agreement with the Captain’s Cove 

Homeowner’s Association to accept into the public sewer system the private sewer pumping 

and collections systems serving Captain’s Cove, a 160-unit condominium project. A special 

sewer service charge surcharge is collected annually to fund the maintenance and operational 

costs of the disproportionate number of pump stations within the community. Funds are   

33



Resolution No. 2022-22552023-xxxx Date Approved: May 19, 2022*** DRAFT **** 

President of the Board 
 

Last Revised: May 19, 2022May 19, 2022 

 

disbursed from the reserve to cover Operating and Maintenance costs which include, but are 

not limited to, the following: the actual cost of labor (including general and administrative 

overhead plus tools and supplies normally applied), equipment and vehicle charges, 

consumables (such as electrical power), and spare parts and/or replaced components as 

necessary. Use of funding for capital outlay projects that serve Captain’s Cove is identified as 

part of the budget process and must be approved by Board action. 

Marin Lagoon Fund: In 1989, the District approved a sanitary sewerage system necessary to 

serve the community of Marin Lagoon. The cost of maintenance and operation of (9) nine 

sanitary sewerage lift stations are far in excess of those costs incurred by the District in 

providing such service to other parts of the District. A special sewer service charge surcharge is 

collected annually to fund the maintenance and operational costs of the disproportionate 

number of sanitary sewerage lift stations within the community. Funds are disbursed from the 

reserve to cover Operating and Maintenance costs which include, but are not limited to, the 

following: the actual cost of labor (including general and administrative overhead plus tools and 

supplies normally applied), equipment and vehicle charges, consumables (such as electrical 

power), and spare parts and/or replaced components as necessary. Use of funding for capital 

outlay projects that serve Marin Lagoon is identified as part of the budget process and must be 

approved by Board action. 

Recycled Water Capital Repair and Replacement Fund: The 2017 agreement between Las 

Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (“Producer”) and Marin Municipal Water District (“Distributor”) 

for purchase and sale of recycled water includes a requirement that the Producer establish and 

maintain a separate fund for capital repair and replacement costs of the Recycled Water 

Treatment Facility (“RWTF”) constructed as part of the Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade 

Recycled Water Expansion Project. Both the Producer and Distributor pay into the fund by 

multiplying the total annual  Operation and Maintenance Costs charged to the RWTF by 10%. 

The fund will pay for any items that cost more than five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) and have a 

useful life of more than one year. Capital repair or replacement items or projects costing less 

than $5,000 will be charged to the Producer’s Operation and Maintenance budget. The Capital 

Repair and Replacement Fund shall not exceed $500,000 in total, and such funds shall only be 

used for capital repair and replacement costs of the RWTF. The fund balance accrues interest 

monthly. 

  

34



35



36



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\06152023\Contract Extensions\ASR Manager Contract Extensions.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Curtis Paxton, General Manager 
 (415) 526-1511   cpaxton@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: June 15, 2023 

Re: Extension of Employment Agreements for Management and Unrepresented 
Employees 

Item Type:   Consent   Action      X  Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No X (See attached) Not Applicable             . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve the Extension of Employment Agreements for management and unrepresented 
employee contracts listed below. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The following management and unrepresented employee contracts are set to expire on June 30, 
2023. The below employees wish to allow the District to complete its negotiations with Operating 
Engineers Local 3 for its represented members before considering changes to their management 
and unrepresented employee contracts. 
 
o Administrative Services Manager McDonald o District Engineer Cortez 

o Collections/Safety/Maintenance Manager Pease o Plant Manager Liebmann 

o Administrative/Financial Specialist Schultz  
 
Due to time constraints, and pursuant to Government Code Section 54956(b) which requires 
management contracts be considered during a regular meeting of the governing body, this is the 
final meeting for which contract changes can be considered before the agreements expire. The 
General Manager has authority to execute contract extensions per Board Policy B-80. 
 
Not executing the extensions would mean employment would technically cease for the above 
employees on July 1, 2023 unless the employees call for reopening of their employment 
agreement by June 30, 2023. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
N/A 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
N/A 

Item Number_______4_______ 

GM Review   ______CP________ 

 

37

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 
Extension of Employment Agreement – Dale McDonald (Administrative Services Mgr) Page 1 

EXTENSION OF EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 

Between Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
 

And 
 

Dale McDonald (Administrative Services Manager) 
 

This EXTENSION OF EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and 

entered into this ___ day of _____, 2023, by and between the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, 

a special district, (“District or Employer”) and Dale McDonald, (“Employee”) both of whom 

understand as follows: 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, an Employment Agreement exists between the District and Employer, entered 

into the 16th of December 2021, for which term is set to end on June 30, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, Employer desires to continue to employ the services of Dale McDonald as 

Administrative Services Manager of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District; and 

WHEREAS, both the Employer and Employee wish to extend the term of the agreement 

for six (6) months to provide for and to allow the District to complete negotiations with its 

represented employees; and 

WHEREAS, the Employer and Employee agree that if a successor Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) between the District and Operating Engineers Local 3 is not approved by 

the District before September 1, 2023, the Employee may call for and enter negotiations on the 

Employment Agreement independent from the represented employee group; and 

WHEREAS, the Employer wishes to recognize that the Employee is offering to delay other 

modifications to their Employment Agreement and in return the Employer wants to confirm that 

any adjustments, including but not limited to salary adjustments, benefits, or other terms 

38



 
Extension of Employment Agreement – Dale McDonald (Administrative Services Mgr) Page 2 

subsequently made after this Extension is entered into, shall be retroactive to the first pay period 

that encompasses July 1, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, both Employer and Employee have read this Extension of Employment 

Agreement and understand its contents fully. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the provisions and promises 

hereinafter set forth, the parties agree as follows:  

 

Extension of Term of Employment Agreement 

Section 2 (B) The term of the Employment Agreement is hereby extended and the Employment 

Agreement shall terminate on December 31, 2023 (the “Extended Term”). 

 

Extension of General Provision to Employment Agreement 

Section 9 (G) - The Employee may reopen negotiations with regards to this Employment 

Agreement if the District has not come to agreement with the union on a Memorandum of 

Understanding between the District and Operating Engineers Local 3 by September 1, 2023.  

Any increase in salary, benefits, or terms negotiated will be retroactive to the first pay period that 

encompasses July 1, 2023. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District has caused this 

Agreement to be signed and executed on its behalf by the General Manager, and duly attested by 

its District Secretary, and the Employee has signed and executed this Agreement the day and year 

first above written. 

 

39



 
Extension of Employment Agreement – Dale McDonald (Administrative Services Mgr) Page 3 

 
 
_______________________________    Date: ______________ 
General Manager 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
 
 
______________________________    Date: _______________ 
Dale McDonald 
 
 
 
______________________________     
Teresa Lerch  
District Secretary 
          Seal 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

40



 
Extension of Employment Agreement – Michael Cortez (District Engineer) Page 1 

EXTENSION OF EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 

Between Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
 

And 
 

Michael Cortez (District Engineer) 
 

This EXTENSION OF EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and 

entered into this ___ day of _____, 2023, by and between the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, 

a special district, (“District or Employer”) and Michael Cortez, (“Employee”) both of whom 

understand as follows: 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, an Employment Agreement exists between the District and Employer, entered 

into the 16th of December 2021, for which term is set to end on June 30, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, Employer desires to continue to employ the services of Michael Cortez as 

District Engineer of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District; and 

WHEREAS, both the Employer and Employee wish to extend the term of the agreement 

for six (6) months to provide for and to allow the District to complete negotiations with its 

represented employees; and 

WHEREAS, the Employer and Employee agree that if a successor Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) between the District and Operating Engineers Local 3 is not approved by 

the District before September 1, 2023, the Employee may call for and enter negotiations on the 

Employment Agreement independent from the represented employee group; and 

WHEREAS, the Employer wishes to recognize that the Employee is offering to delay other 

modifications to their Employment Agreement and in return the Employer wants to confirm that 

any adjustments, including but not limited to salary adjustments, benefits, or other terms 

41



 
Extension of Employment Agreement – Michael Cortez (District Engineer) Page 2 

subsequently made after this Extension is entered into, shall be retroactive to the first pay period 

that encompasses July 1, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, both Employer and Employee have read this Extension of Employment 

Agreement and understand its contents fully. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the provisions and promises 

hereinafter set forth, the parties agree as follows:  

 

Extension of Term of Employment Agreement 

Section 2 (B) The term of the Employment Agreement is hereby extended and the Employment 

Agreement shall terminate on December 31, 2023 (the “Extended Term”). 

 

Extension of General Provision to Employment Agreement 

Section 9 (G) - The Employee may reopen negotiations with regards to this Employment 

Agreement if the District has not come to agreement with the union on a Memorandum of 

Understanding between the District and Operating Engineers Local 3 by September 1, 2023.  

Any increase in salary, benefits, or terms negotiated will be retroactive to the first pay period that 

encompasses July 1, 2023. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District has caused this 

Agreement to be signed and executed on its behalf by the General Manager, and duly attested by 

its District Secretary, and the Employee has signed and executed this Agreement the day and year 

first above written. 

 

42

https://www.lawinsider.com/clause/extension-of-term-of-employment-agreement/_2
https://www.lawinsider.com/clause/extension-of-term-of-employment-agreement/_2


 
Extension of Employment Agreement – Michael Cortez (District Engineer) Page 3 

 
 
_______________________________    Date: ______________ 
General Manager 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
 
 
______________________________    Date: _______________ 
Michael Cortez 
 
 
 
______________________________     
Teresa Lerch  
District Secretary 
          Seal 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

43



 
Extension of Employment Agreement – Greg Pease (Collection/Safety/Maintenance Mgr) Page 1 

EXTENSION OF EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 

Between Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
 

And 
 

Greg Pease (Collection System/Safety/Maintenance Manager) 
 

This EXTENSION OF EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and 

entered into this ___ day of _____, 2023, by and between the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, 

a special district, (“District or Employer”) and Greg Pease, (“Employee”) both of whom 

understand as follows: 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, an Employment Agreement exists between the District and Employer, entered 

into the 16th of December 2021, for which term is set to end on June 30, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, Employer desires to continue to employ the services of Greg Pease as 

Collection System/Safety/Maintenance Manager of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District; and 

WHEREAS, both the Employer and Employee wish to extend the term of the agreement 

for six (6) months to provide for and to allow the District to complete negotiations with its 

represented employees; and 

WHEREAS, the Employer and Employee agree that if a successor Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) between the District and Operating Engineers Local 3 is not approved by 

the District before September 1, 2023, the Employee may call for and enter negotiations on the 

Employment Agreement independent from the represented employee group; and 

WHEREAS, the Employer wishes to recognize that the Employee is offering to delay other 

modifications to their Employment Agreement and in return the Employer wants to confirm that 

any adjustments, including but not limited to salary adjustments, benefits, or other terms 

44



 
Extension of Employment Agreement – Greg Pease (Collection/Safety/Maintenance Mgr) Page 2 

subsequently made after this Extension is entered into, shall be retroactive to the first pay period 

that encompasses July 1, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, both Employer and Employee have read this Extension of Employment 

Agreement and understand its contents fully. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the provisions and promises 

hereinafter set forth, the parties agree as follows:  

 

Extension of Term of Employment Agreement 

Section 2 (B) The term of the Employment Agreement is hereby extended and the Employment 

Agreement shall terminate on December 31, 2023 (the “Extended Term”). 

 

Extension of General Provision to Employment Agreement 

Section 9 (G) - The Employee may reopen negotiations with regards to this Employment 

Agreement if the District has not come to agreement with the union on a Memorandum of 

Understanding between the District and Operating Engineers Local 3 by September 1, 2023.  

Any increase in salary, benefits, or terms negotiated will be retroactive to the first pay period that 

encompasses July 1, 2023. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District has caused this 

Agreement to be signed and executed on its behalf by the General Manager, and duly attested by 

its District Secretary, and the Employee has signed and executed this Agreement the day and year 

first above written. 

 

45

https://www.lawinsider.com/clause/extension-of-term-of-employment-agreement/_2
https://www.lawinsider.com/clause/extension-of-term-of-employment-agreement/_2


 
Extension of Employment Agreement – Greg Pease (Collection/Safety/Maintenance Mgr) Page 3 

 
 
_______________________________    Date: ______________ 
General Manager 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
 
 
______________________________    Date: _______________ 
Greg Pease 
 
 
 
______________________________     
Teresa Lerch  
District Secretary 
          Seal 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

46



 
Extension of Employment Agreement – Robert Liebmann (Plant Manager) Page 1 

EXTENSION OF EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 

Between Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
 

And 
 

Robert Liebmann (Plant Manager) 
 

This EXTENSION OF EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and 

entered into this ___ day of _____, 2023, by and between the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, 

a special district, (“District or Employer”) and Robert Liebmann, (“Employee”) both of whom 

understand as follows: 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, an Employment Agreement exists between the District and Employer, entered 

into the 16th of December 2021, for which term is set to end on June 30, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, Employer desires to continue to employ the services of Robert Liebmann as 

Plant Manager of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District; and 

WHEREAS, both the Employer and Employee wish to extend the term of the agreement 

for six (6) months to provide for and to allow the District to complete negotiations with its 

represented employees; and 

WHEREAS, the Employer and Employee agree that if a successor Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) between the District and Operating Engineers Local 3 is not approved by 

the District before September 1, 2023, the Employee may call for and enter negotiations on the 

Employment Agreement independent from the represented employee group; and 

WHEREAS, the Employer wishes to recognize that the Employee is offering to delay other 

modifications to their Employment Agreement and in return the Employer wants to confirm that 

any adjustments, including but not limited to salary adjustments, benefits, or other terms 

47



 
Extension of Employment Agreement – Robert Liebmann (Plant Manager) Page 2 

subsequently made after this Extension is entered into, shall be retroactive to the first pay period 

that encompasses July 1, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, both Employer and Employee have read this Extension of Employment 

Agreement and understand its contents fully. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the provisions and promises 

hereinafter set forth, the parties agree as follows:  

 

Extension of Term of Employment Agreement 

Section 2 (B) The term of the Employment Agreement is hereby extended and the Employment 

Agreement shall terminate on December 31, 2023 (the “Extended Term”). 

 

Extension of General Provision to Employment Agreement 

Section 9 (G) - The Employee may reopen negotiations with regards to this Employment 

Agreement if the District has not come to agreement with the union on a Memorandum of 

Understanding between the District and Operating Engineers Local 3 by September 1, 2023.  

Any increase in salary, benefits, or terms negotiated will be retroactive to the first pay period that 

encompasses July 1, 2023. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District has caused this 

Agreement to be signed and executed on its behalf by the General Manager, and duly attested by 

its District Secretary, and the Employee has signed and executed this Agreement the day and year 

first above written. 

 

48

https://www.lawinsider.com/clause/extension-of-term-of-employment-agreement/_2
https://www.lawinsider.com/clause/extension-of-term-of-employment-agreement/_2


 
Extension of Employment Agreement – Robert Liebmann (Plant Manager) Page 3 

 
 
_______________________________    Date: ______________ 
General Manager 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
 
 
______________________________    Date: _______________ 
Robert Liebmann 
 
 
 
______________________________     
Teresa Lerch  
District Secretary 
          Seal 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

49



 
Extension of Employment Agreement – Amy Schultz (Admin./Financial Specialist) Page 1 

EXTENSION OF EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 

Between Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
 

And 
 

Amy Schultz (Administrative/Financial Specialist - Confidential) 
 

This EXTENSION OF EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and 

entered into this ___ day of _____, 2023, by and between the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, 

a special district, (“District or Employer”) and Amy Schultz, (“Employee”) both of whom 

understand as follows: 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, an Employment Agreement exists between the District and Employer, entered 

into the 16th of December 2021, for which term is set to end on June 30, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, Employer desires to continue to employ the services of Amy Schultz as 

Administrative/Financial Specialist - Confidential of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District; and 

WHEREAS, both the Employer and Employee wish to extend the term of the agreement 

for six (6) months to provide for and to allow the District to complete negotiations with its 

represented employees; and 

WHEREAS, the Employer and Employee agree that if a successor Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) between the District and Operating Engineers Local 3 is not approved by 

the District before September 1, 2023, the Employee may call for and enter negotiations on the 

Employment Agreement independent from the represented employee group; and 

WHEREAS, the Employer wishes to recognize that the Employee is offering to delay other 

modifications to their Employment Agreement and in return the Employer wants to confirm that 

any adjustments, including but not limited to salary adjustments, benefits, or other terms 

50



 
Extension of Employment Agreement – Amy Schultz (Admin./Financial Specialist) Page 2 

subsequently made after this Extension is entered into, shall be retroactive to the first pay period 

that encompasses July 1, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, both Employer and Employee have read this Extension of Employment 

Agreement and understand its contents fully. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the provisions and promises 

hereinafter set forth, the parties agree as follows:  

 

Extension of Term of Employment Agreement 

Section 2 (B) The term of the Employment Agreement is hereby extended and the Employment 

Agreement shall terminate on December 31, 2023 (the “Extended Term”). 

 

Extension of General Provision to Employment Agreement 

Section 9 (G) - The Employee may reopen negotiations with regards to this Employment 

Agreement if the District has not come to agreement with the union on a Memorandum of 

Understanding between the District and Operating Engineers Local 3 by September 1, 2023.  

Any increase in salary, benefits, or terms negotiated will be retroactive to the first pay period that 

encompasses July 1, 2023. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District has caused this 

Agreement to be signed and executed on its behalf by the General Manager, and duly attested by 

its District Secretary, and the Employee has signed and executed this Agreement the day and year 

first above written. 

 

51

https://www.lawinsider.com/clause/extension-of-term-of-employment-agreement/_2
https://www.lawinsider.com/clause/extension-of-term-of-employment-agreement/_2


 
Extension of Employment Agreement – Amy Schultz (Admin./Financial Specialist) Page 3 

 
 
_______________________________    Date: ______________ 
General Manager 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
 
 
______________________________    Date: _______________ 
Amy Schultz 
 
 
 
______________________________     
Teresa Lerch  
District Secretary 
          Seal 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

52



 

 
 

 

6/15/2023 
 

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
CLARK 

NBWA Board Committee, 2023 Operations Control Center 
Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

FORD 
NBWRA, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc 
Committee, 2023 GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 
McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee,  2023 Fleet Management 
Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 SF Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee, 
Other Reports  
 

MURRAY 
Marin LAFCO, CASA Energy Committee, 2023 Biosolids Ad 
Hoc Committee, 2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
2023 SF Trail Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  
  

ROBARDS 
Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, 2023 Engineering 
Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,  2023 McInnis Marsh Ad 
Hoc Committee, 2023 GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, 
2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  

 
YEZMAN 

Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Marin Special Districts Association, 
2023 Ad Hoc Engineering Sub-Committee re: STPURWE, 
2022 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5 

53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



                                                                                  AGENDA ITEM 6A 
                                                                                 DATE: June 15, 2023             

REVISED 06012021 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER 

 MEETING ATTENDANCE REQUEST 
 

 

Date:___________Name:__________________________________________________ 

 

I would like to attend the __________________________________________Meeting 

of _____________________________________________________________________ 

To be held on the ______ day of ___________ from ________ a.m. / p.m. to 

_______day of ___________ from  _________ a.m. / p.m. 

Location of meeting:____________________________________________________ 

Actual meeting date(s):____________________________________________________ 

Meeting Type: (In person/Webinar/Conference)_______________________________ 

Purpose of Meeting:______________________________________________________  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Meeting relevance to District:__________________________________________  

                  YES     NO 

Request assistance from Board Secretary to register for Conference:          

 

Frequency of Meeting: ____________________________________________________ 

 

Estimated Costs of Travel (if applicable):____________________________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date submitted to Board Secretary:________________________________________ 

 

Board approval obtained on Date:_________________________________________ 

 

Please submit this form to the Board Secretary no later than 1 week  prior to the 

Board Meeting.  

 

  

78



 

 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\06152023\Board Agenda Item Requests.docx 

6/15/2023 
 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS 
 

Agenda Item 6B 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report 

□ Presentation 

 

79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86


	Agenda 06152023
	A Closed Session
	1 Public Comment
	2A Minutes 05252023 and 06012023
	2B Warrant List 06152023
	2C Board May Compensation
	2D Clark Zoom meeting request
	3.1 General Manager Report
	3.2 Engineering Dept Report
	3.3 Financial Policies Review F50 Reserves
	4  Unrepresented Contract Extensions
	Extension of Employment Agreements June 2023.pdf
	1_Extension of Employee Agreement - McDonald - June 2023
	2_Extension of Employee Agreement - Cortez - June 2023
	3_Extension of Employee Agreement - Pease - June 2023
	4_Extension of Employee Agreement - Liebmann - June 2023
	5_Extension of Employee Agreement - Schultz - June 2023


	5 Board Member Reports
	5.3 Murray Report
	6A Member Meeting Attendance Request
	6B Board Agenda Item Requests
	7 Misc Industry Articles



